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Auditor of State
Betty Montgomery

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT

Warren County Vocational School District
Warren County

3529 North State Route 48

Lebanon, Ohio 45036

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Warren County Vocational
School District, Warren County, Ohio (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which
collectively comprise the District’'s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Warren County Vocational School District, Warren
County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General, Food Service and Adult Education
Funds thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 7,
2005 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

Corporate Centre of Blue Ash /11117 Kenwood Rd. / Blue Ash, OH 45242
Telephone: (513) 361-8550 (800) 368-7419 Fax: (513) 361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Warren County Vocational School District
Warren County

Independent Accountants’ Report

Page 2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information the Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Tty Iwtgmsny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State

February 7, 2005
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Warren Connty Vocational School District
Warrenn Cousty, Oiio
Management’s Disenssion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30, 2004
frraidited)

The management’s discossion and analysis of Warren Counly Vocational School District™s {ihe
“Sehool District™) financial performance provides an overall review of the financial activities for the
fiscal year ended Tune 30, 2004, The intent of ihis discusgion and analysis is 10 look at the School
District’s linancial performance a5 1 whole; readers should alse review the notes to the financial
slaternent and financial statements 1o enhance their undersianding of the School Disieict’ s Aoancial
performance.

Financial ighlichis
Key financial highlights for 2004 are as follows:

v Governmental tolal assels execeded {otal liabililies at the clase ol the most recent fscal year
by $7.27 million for governmental activities and $7.37 million overall,

v (Gemeral revenues in govertmcnial activities accounted for $2.42 million in revenue or 80.10
pereent of all revenues, Program speci (ie revenues in charges for serviees and grants and
contribuilions accounted For $2.34 million or 19.9) percent of $11.76 million in total
gavernmental nelivities revenue,

v The business-type activities were financed through programs revenues of $.12 million
resulting in vear end net assets of $.10 million.

v At the end of the current. fiseal year, cash and cash equivalents of $4.19 million aceounted
for 36.10 pereent of total assets, excluding capilal assets.

g The Schoot District had $11.95 million in expenscs refating to povernmental activities; only
$2.34 million of these expenses were ofTsel by program specific revenues. General revenues
were adequale Lo cover the $2.60 million net cxpensc of governmental programs,

v Among major funds, the general fund had $9.62 milliom in revenues and $9.57 in
cxpenditures. The general fund’s balanee at the close of the current vear was 41.47 perceni
o the eurrent year’s expenditures,

Overview of the Financial Statemenis

The discussion and analysis iz intended to serve as an inwoduction 1o the Schoaol Thstrict’s basic
financial stateiments. The School Distriet’s basic financial statements comprise three components:
1} governmend-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3} noles to the Gnancial
stalemenis.



Warren Couniy Vocationatl Scltoot District
Warren County, Ohtio
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30, 2004
funaidited)

Covernment-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statenients ate designed
to provide readers with a broad overview ol the School Distriet’s finances, in a manner similar (o
privale-scetor business.

The statement of nel gssets presents information on all the School District’s assels and liabilities,
with the difference helween the bwo veporled as ned assedy. Owver Lime, increases and decreases in
net assels nuay serve as a uselul indicator of whether the [Inancial position of the Schoal [istriet is
improving or detleriorating.

The stafement of acfivites presenls imformaiion showing how the School Distriet’s net asseis
changed during the most receni fiscal year, Al changes in nel assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise o the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenucs and cxpenses are reported in this stalemenl (or some items that will only result in
caslt flows in Tuture fiscal periods (e.g. uncellected taxes and carned bul unused vacation leave.)

Roth of the government-wide Tinaicial statemenis distinguish functions of the Schonl Districd that
arc principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenucs {govermmental activities) from
ather funclions that are intended ta recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (husiness-type activities). The governmenlal activities include general instruetion aff
secondary siudents and Lhe associated support for those services. The business-type activities
include the education of adulls and general ensiomer scrvices for the School District. The
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-16 of this report,

Fund financial statements. A lund 15 a grouping of velated secounts that is used to mainiain control
aver resources that have heen segregated for specific activitics or ohjectives. The School District,
iike other state and local governments, uscs fund accounti ne to ensure and demonsivale compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All the funds of the School Disiriet can be divided into
three categories: governmental, propeictary and fiduciary lumds,

Ceversmental fiunds. Governmental funds are used o sccoumt for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activitics in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmenial fund financial statements focus on near-
lerm inflows and outftows of spendable resources, as weli as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the figeal vear. Such information may be uscful in evaluating the Sehool
District’s near-term financing requirements,



Harren Connty Vacafional School Divtrict
Warren County, Oltio
Munagenient’s Discussion and Analvsis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
{(naudited)

Because the foeus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is uscful to compare the information presented for governmenial Munds with sintilar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
deing so, readers may better viderstand the long-term impacl of the governmeni’s near-term
fmancing decisions, Bolh ihe governmental fund balance sheet and the statement of revenues,
expendilures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconeiliation to factlitale this comparison
between the governmental achivities stalement of net assets and statement of activities.

The Schoal] District maintains twenty-two individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balanee sheet and the statemient of (und revennes, expenditures
and ehanges in fund balance for the pencral Tund, Teod service fund and adult cducation, which me
considered major funds. Data (rom the oiber twenty governmental funds are combined into asingle.
agaregale presentalion,

The School Dhstrict adopts an annual appropriation budpet for all of {1s governmental funds,
Budgeotary comparison statements have been provided for the major funds to demonsirate compliance
wilh this budget. The basie governmental fund financial statemenis can be found on pages 17-21
of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The School District maintaing two different types of proprictary [imds.
Erferprise funds ave used to repor! the same funetions presented as husiness-type aciivities in the
government-wide financial sistements. The School District used enterprise funds 1o account Tor its
customer service, fnternal service fund is an accounting device nsed to accumulate and allocale costs
ameong the School District’s various lunetions. The Schoal THstrict used (he internal service fund
1 account for it's internal health eare coverage. Because this serviee predommately benelils
governmental rather than business-type funetions, it has been included within the govermmental
activities mthe governmeni-wide financial stalements. The proprieiary fund statements can be found
an pages 22-24,

Fidueiary Funds, Tiduciary funds arc used o acecnmi for resources held for the benefil of parties
outside the School District. Viduciary unds are not refllected in the government-wide financial
stafements beeause the resourees of those funds are not available to suppart the School District’s
awn programs.  The acconnting used for fiduciary funds is mueh [ike that used for governmental
funds. The basic fidueiary fund tinanecial statement can be found on page 23 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Stedement. The notes provide additional information that is cssential o a full
mnderstanding of the Jata provided in the govemment-wide and [uod financial siatements, The notes
to the financial statements start on page 27 of this report.



Warren County Vocational Sclioal Districi
Warren Connty, Ohio
Management’s Discassion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
(nnauidited)

Government-Wide Finaiucial Analysis

Reeall that the Statement of Net Asscls provides the perspective of the School District as a whole,
Table 1 provides a comparison of the School District’s net assets for 2003 1o 2004,

Asacts
Current and Other Assels

Capital Asscts

TFored Assefs

Liahilitics

Long-term Liabilitics

Other Tiabilifies

Tenord Liahifitioy

Net Assets

Invested in Capiial Asscts,
act of depreciation

Restricied

Unrestricted

Toted Ner Assets

Terhle |
Ner Assety

CFoveramertal Activities

Businesy-Type Activities

(fr mifiions}

2003 2004 Chanye 20003 2004 Change
Fl1ian $11.51 5085 $71,925 F95.004  $23.079
3,792 3,78 (.04 4117 3.467 (30
14.38 15,20 0.91 76042 08.471 22,429
0.57 0.78 0,21 0 f) 0
.37 724 {1.R7 1491 854 {637)
6,94 8.02 .08 1,497 834 {637
328 3,50 0.22 4,117 3467 {5 {1
077 {62 (135 {} {1 {
3.39 315 (0.24) 70,434 04,150 23,716

$7.44  _ $7.37 _(80.07) _$74.551 _$97,617 _$23.066

Liabilities for governmental activitios increased due Lo fhe severance pavitents that were ourstands ng
al the end of the fiscal year. The School Distriet’s other accounts saw relatively litle ehange fiom
the prior year as the School Disirict maintains controls over the timing of reeeivables and payables
in both govermnental and business-type activilies,



Warren Comniy Vocational School District
Warrenr County, Qirio
Management's Disenssion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 360, 2004
{rinandired)

Graph 1 breaks down the School District’s covernmental aclivities reveitues nilo percentages by
ju 1 £ k

type of revenue.
Craph

Ceovernmental Activiries

- Uharges sor Sarvices (1 2.00%)

~— lpernting Cirmwls (R CO%h)

Tabie 2 details the actual amounts (in thousands) for the Schoal Disirict s a whole [tom 2003 to

2004,
Governmenlal Aclivities Business-Twvne Activities Primary Governmeni
2003 2004 20003 2004 2003 2004
Programn Revenines
Charges Tar Services 1,653 51411 K104 5118 51,757 51,529
Oporading Grants |
and Contributions LO7E 035 ) 0 { 1,078 Rk
Tolal Program Revenues 2,731 2.4 104 118 2,835 264
General Revenues
Propery Taxes AR5 3.200 f ] 6815 3.2
Payment in Licu of Taxes 17 41 ] (t L7 41
Unresiricted Grants
and Condeibulions 4,358 4. 10 it 0 4338 4,105
Investment Earnings a7 42 0 0 37 42
wiscellaneous 358 28 ] 0 IR 28
Tolal (eneral Revenues 11,245 0,42 f 0 [ 243 G 4724
All Revenuos $13.970 311,760 5104 FLIA 14080 511,884




Warren Counfy Vocationad Scieol Divtrici
Warren County, Ofiio
Managcment's Discussion and Analysis
Foe the Fivcal Year Ended Fane 38, 2004
(i audited)

Table 3 compares wotal program cxpenses (Tom Tiseal year 2003 to 2004,

Teahle 3
(it thesainds)

Crovernmaental Activilics Business-Type Activities Pritnary Cravernment
20003 200H 2003 2004 2003 2004
Program Expenses
fmsivueion:
Repular k14 £ 8! hik S0 fld 9|
Special B3 Gl 0 { 5 9
Vocalional 5703 5,480 )} 0 57793 S48
Adult'Continuing 188 1417 1 0 LES 147
Aripgnet Servives:
T'pils 1.351 1,476 (} 0 1,351 [.474
Insiruetional Stat? 324 450 I 0 524 450
Roard of Felucation a7 12 I { 7 12
AcliminisLralion ENRE 1,067 (1 { 1,014 L0aY
Fizeal 429 433 1] { £20 433
Buzineas 73 T 0 { 73 T
Operation anid
Mainlenance Rad 7o 860 7o
Pupil Transportation 75 62 I | 78 &2
Cendral 2058 1,554 I f 2158 l.554
Oiperation of Mon-
Tnstructtonal Scrviees s 23 Y f1 18 23
Fond Service 220 263 il f 229 263
[ixtracurricuiar
Activities 35 kLl ] f i 36
Rotary 0 0 oy 03 o 95
Inderest and
IMiseal Charges 21 13 { il 21 i3
Total Expenses 12,873 1,950 g7 03 [ 2,970 12,045
Change in Mel Assols [,103 {135 7 23 [, 110 {162}
Dsupzinnemgs ol Assods 4,335 TSR o7 7 A2 7,532
Ending Nel Assols F7.458 31273 F74 7 $T53d 5730
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Warren County Vocational Sclhoof District
Warren County, Ohio
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004
{rerraridifed)

The District increased property taxes from the prior year as Warren County continues to grow ihe
residential and commercial tox rapldly compared with other counties in the Stare, The District was
able o reduce the overall expenses by maintaining a higher adminisirative control aver departmental
budgets. The central supporl service recognized the largest reduetion as the Disiviel had incorred
some expenditures during 2003 that were noi reoceurring during 2004,

The Major Frinds

The Schoot District’s major funds start on page 17 for governmental Amds, These funds are
accounied for using the modified accrual basis of accounting, focusing on the near lerm Fnancial
resources ol the School Distrier, The major funds account G 94.27% of the $11.77 million in totai
revenie and 91.48% percent of the S12.20 million in wtal expenses. The gencral Tund recetved a
majority of their revenues from property laxes and inlergovernmental revenues, Rovenues were less
than cxpenditurcs in the general fund creating a vear end Mund halance of $3.97 million. The food
service fund and adult education received a majority of their revenues from charges (or services or
fees which both had a positive change in not assels For the [scal vear

The general (und recognized $.77 miliion tn current labilities for fiscal vear 2004, Acerued salaries
and benefits accounted for 68.93% of those liahiiities. The general lund maintained a cash balance
of $3.10 million, which accounted for 75.66% of iolal District governmental fund cash,

The Toad service fand had n large interfund payable sinee the Fumd hos lost moncy tor several vears.
The feod service fund received $0.16 million in charges Tor services, which accounted far 73.65%,
of the fund’s revenues.

One of the School District express purposes is to scrviee the adult cammumity through various
programs. ‘The School Disirict served over 7,100 adults during 2004, With $1.33 million
expenditures. the adult education fund is second only (0 the general fand i expenditures that the
School District tineurs on an anmual bagis. 'The District was able o increase the adull edueation fund
balance by 53,258 for the lisenl year, which showed a negative net change i1 net asscts of 50,18
million in 2003,
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Warren Connty Vocational School Districr
Warren Connty, Olrio
Muanagement's Dixcussion and Analysis
For the Fiseal Year Ended fuse 30, 2004
{unaudited)

General Fund Badgetary

Ciraph 3 depicts the change {rom ihe original o Lhe (inal general fumd revenue budget Tor the fiscal
year cnded June 30, 2004,

Ciraph 3
Orieinal Budeet versus Final Budcet for General Fimd
Buduel
Original Final
Revenues:
Property Taxes $3. 853,027  $6.059,831
Tnlergovernimenial 1,907 318 4,10 494
Other 262,363 271,633
Total Revenues 10,082,708  1(1,438,958
Expenditures:
Current;
[nstruction $5,319,233 55,278,550
Support Services 4,322,192 4,289,133
Other 415,147 411,972
Total Fxpenditures FHLO56.572 $9.979.657

The Iwo major differences in revenue were property taxes increasing $206,804 and
intergovernmentul revenues $140,176, The increase heiween the eriginal and final budget can be
explained by the School District budgeting under a conservalive approach with the uncertainty of
taxes revenues for the School District. The School District also ook a slight increase spproach when
predicting sehool foundation monies (intergovernmental revenue) given the pending litigation the
Stale ig under by the Supreme Court rulings. The School District did budget closer by reducing the
difference by over {ifty percent in both areas.

Final budgeted expenditures were less than the original budgeted expenditures, The School District

budgeted some expenditures thatl were not necessary as the fiscal year progressed; thereby, redueing
the final budget by just under one percent frem the original udgel amount.

Final Budver versus Actual Results
The School Distriet prepared the final budpet towards the end of Junc 2004 when aciual results were

known. There is no difference except $2,252 for a interest (the School [istrict received ot the end
of June.
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Warren County Vocationn! Schoal District
Warren Counfy, Olio
Management’s Discassion and Anafysis
For the Fiveal Year Ended June 30, 2004
{rnandited)

Capital Asscrs

During 2004, the School District saw an increase of 5.04 million invested in land, buildings,
couipmeni, and vehicles. A schedule showing accumulated depreciation and the brealkdown of
current vear depreciation can he found in nole 8 of the financial stalements, Table 4 shows the
breakdown of the individual classes for capilal asscts (not including accumulated depreciation),

Tahle 4
Capital Avsats, net of depreciation
Governmenial BusingsseType Porcentage
Activilics . Aetivilies Total Chanpe
2005-restaled 2004 2003 2004 2003 2001 2003-04
Lot R g, 0 FA56,000 0 3 456,000 BE30.000 (.50
Buildings and
Improvernents 6,573 928 #9306, 181 1] { 6373028 6,936,181 P b
Furniture ant
Fepuipriem 3126339 3,332.311 o G <, 00 AN 240 3337234 4.58%
Yehicles 367104 412,504 0 {l 167,194 412,50H 12,534%
Accumulated
Dreprecialion {6, 780,777} (7.351.358) (7841 (1434 (A7R1EG1 (7352, 7400y 8.42%
Tedal 53742644 B3 TAS AAL B L0T  B346T  $37M6.801  $3 789127 1.13%

Delt Administeation

The School District has no long term general obligation debt. The School District docs have a
capital Jease for $116,812. The School District leased technology equipment in 2000, Tor further
information on the School Distriet’s abligation referio nole 14 of the financial stalemenis.
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Warren Counity Vocafional School Districs
Warren County, ftio
Munagement’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 36, 2004
funisrdfted)
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general overview of the School District’s finances
for all those wilh an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this repoit or requests for additdonal finaneial information should be
addressed ro the Office of the Treasurer, Warren Counly V8D, 3529 N, SR 48, Lebanon, Ohio
45036,

Treasuror
Warren County
Vocalional School THstrici
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Warren County Vocational School District

Warren County, Chio
Statemment of Not Assets

Juna 30, 2004

Primary Government
Governmantal Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total
Assels
Equity in Poaled Cash and Cash Equivalents B4.084, 333 385,251 $4.158 584
Recalvables:;
Property and Other Taxes 7,143,031 a 7,143,031
Ascaounts 26 680 0 26,680
Intergavernmental 55,434 0 658,434
Materials and Supplies Inventary 106,557 O 108,557
Internal Balances 247 (247 0
Frepaid Items 71,482 0 71,4832
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,312 a 30,312
Capital Assets {net of accumulated
depreciation) 3,785,680 3,467 3,789,127
Total Assats 15,296 706 08,471 165,380,177
Liahifitles
Fayables:
Accounts 42 675 844 43,224
Contracts GG, 840 ] 65,940
Intergovernmental 80,140 205 60,345
Salaries and Employee Benefits 560,713 0 860,713
Deferred Revenue 6,475,000 0 6,475,000
Moncurrent Liahkilities:
e within ane year 375,104 i 374,104
Due in more than ane year 408,511 a A08 511
Total Liabilities B 023,083 854 B 0235837
Net Assets
Invested In capital assets,
net of related debt 3,503,663 3,467 3,807,120
Restricted {or:
Grants 33,827 f 33 627
State Mandates 30,312 1] 30,312
Capital Improverients B57, 1658 o 557 188
Unrestricted 3,148 875 84 166 3,243 028
Total Net Assels _ 7273 623 507 617 7,371,240

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Warren Counly Vocational Schaol Disfrict
Warren County, Ohio
Statement of Activifies
For the Fiscal Yoar Ended June 36, 3004

Net (Expense) Revenuo and

Frogram Roveanuos Changes in Not Assets
Operating
Charges far Grants and Govornmantal Buslness-Typa
Function/Programs Expehses Servicas  Contributions Activitias __Act|vities Total
Govarntmental Acthaties;
Instruction:
Ragular HA0n3 ($803) H0 (A0
Special £0,584 (69,554 i {G9,504)
Yorational &, 480,002 63,413 174,204 (4,814,038, i {4,014.035)
AdultCantinulng 146 508 11,077 118,402 {1831 ] £15.319)
Suppart Semvices;
Puplls 1,475,805 79,331 202,468 (1,192,687 ] {1,782 8687
Instructional Staff 458 302 120, 86 (A37.723) 0 (337,723
RAoard of Educallon 11,769 {11. 7648 n {11,760
A mipistration 1.067 262 1B6,B458 54,857 (B25,557) il (825.567)
Fizcal A2 436 (432 435 1] (432.435)
Buslnass a0.a801 {80601 0 (59,501]
Operatlon and Maintenance of Plant 701,255 (781 ,255) 0 (F31,2685)
Pupil Transpartation 2,721 {62721 n [B2,721)
Ceniral 1,564,130 558117 234,858 (761,185 0 (751,153
Operation of Non-Instructional Sanvices 22,8490 [22.850) a [22,590]
Food Service 2E3,257 131,216 20,8585 [Ga 236 n (52 226
Extracuiricular Mctivitlaa 30,350 (30,3501 0 (30,350
interest and Fiseal Charges 13,621 S fmEe2y a 138210
Total Govarnmzntal Activities 11 850 BAG 1,410,802 934 843 (2,605 141} ] [B.605 141)
Husiness-Typs Activitles:
Customar Servlce a4 427 118,200 N L] 23,762 23,702
Total Busineas-Type Actlvities 04 427 118,200 N 1] 23,762 23,782
Tatal Primary Govarnment $12,045314 _ $1,629.011 $934,043 (9.805,141) 23,782 (5,561,358}
General Revenues:
Froparty Taxes 5,199,631 o 5,199,B31
Payment in Liew of Taxes 40,735 G AD T25
Grants and Cantributions nol restricled to spaclllc programs 4108, 087 0 4,108,082
Linreatricted investment earming s 42,242 0 Aa, 242
Miscellaneaus .27 BR3 0 AT,A55
Total General Revenuss 8,419,733 a 9,419,723
Loos on Disposal of Capltal Asasts (874 fl {574}
Tranafers 716 [F 16 0
Clhanges in Mat Azzats {185,266) 23 065 {162, 200)
Met Aszote-Boginning {Restated) V458 885 74 G851 7,533 440
Mot Asaote-Ending 7 273623 207 517 $7,371.240

Bea gocampanyling notes fo tho basic nancial staterants
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Azages and Other Doblis
Ansata

Rauily in Peoled Cosh and Sash Equivalants

Receivablos:
Proparty and Other Taxes
Acnounts
IntestFriaed
Inkorgaws et |
Prepald Hems
Matarlals and Suples Inventery
Restricted Assols:
Cash and Cash Egulvalents

Tolal Azsats

Liakllltios and Fund Balances

Labllitlas
Payahlas:

Acopunts
Caonfracts
[2ue lo Local Govarnimaais
Ealaries and Employos Bonelts
Intaniund
Maturce Lazve Payable
Pefered Rovenua

Tolal Llakilities

Ragerved for:
Encwmbrarn res
Propery Taxes
Inveniony
Biudgel Stahilizoticn
Unreservad, raporiad n;
Gonaral
Apecinl Rovenue (Deficit)
Capital Profecis

Tatal Fund Balances { Defigit)

Total Llalilles andd Fund Balancas

Wearren County Yocationad Sehool Diatrict
Warren Courly, Ohlo

Balance Shaet - Govergmental Finds

June a0 2

Amounts reporlad for gavemimontal activitles Inthe slalement of net

assets are difforont because;

Capltal assets usad In gavemmental acllvitlas are nat Tnanaal
rescurcas an, thereforn, ara nal repordaod In ke fnds

Oiher Inng lonm assets are not availabla ta pay for ciment perlod
cxpondiluras ang, thoralare, are deforred In he funds

Intarnal servica fumid s nsed by mananement o chaige the rogl of

benofit insurancs to emplayaas

Long-tarm dlabillies ara not thre and payakla in the coran narjod

ad {harefors are nol ropoted in tho funds,

{Itrer Tntal
Faacd Al Gavernmaatal Govemmantal

Ganargl Senvlce Erucation Finds Funds
53,047,753 1,074 5240 4085 FT26, 809 54 064,242
7, 14303% i {1 [ 743031
24,000 1.000 1,560 n 26,650
Th4 025 Q 1] 13,150 THA 147
1,650 2711 0 84,073 G6,404
G5.525 414 4,770 ThH T A%
101,611 4,506 ¥} i} 106,557
20,312 N o { b a112
711,218,961 F101560 _ G274, M5 Fa04. 7an 514,408 855
$15.000 A A5 633 51,056 42 675
43,302 0 n] 23,548 FGE.A40
7B 1,A1R0 14,841 1.16A a0, 140
533.R20 3235 17,8660 i EB0,714
q 661,401 15,591 984418 TH7 104
100,547 1] { 0 104,547
B4 75,0000 { ] 15 502 g 510,502
7249 706 FEE, 1965 78,933 107,852 AT M7
65 Az ] A8,186 131, 46 034,554
500,000 fl 0 [¥ R00,000
FO,083 1] i] a 70,083
g2 o 1] il a,a12
A,004 048 { ] 1] 3,004,048
N (B2, 046 168 426 81,140 (442,430
[ o 0 434,921 434,521
3,580,745 (882 0400 105,512 E47 107 4,131,438

511 .213.961_ H1 n.1_£ F274.945 F8404 79

3700650
35,542
a1
L {ETS, 0B,

Ser Aocompanying Aates 1o tha baair financlal zlatements
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Warren Cointy VYocationsl School Disfrict
Warran Caimiy, Ohio
Statarenf of Rovanwves, Expenditures and Changos in Fond Bafancas -
Govornarental Frnds
For the Yoar Endecd June 30, 2004

Dhar Telal
[Fand Arduit Governmenta: Govrinrmental
Garoral Servlce . _Educatiar _ . Funds Funeis
Rawvenues;
Praperhy And Other TAwes HIER RELAN Y 20 0 fin] G, 149e A
Infargeyernmenial A, 109,144 26515 AR 558 E21,328 5,047, 5R1
Charges for Semicos n 156,130 0 o 157 430
Tulllan And Fees 714,505 a ATR,SA0 a1 1,180 5673
Injerest 40,477 ul a T 42242
Giifta And Dopatinns 6Aa7 o a 18,700 18,347
Paymentin Lien nf Tawes 40,735 o 4] a 40,726
Rant L] 1 Q a 4,270
Miscellaneous ¥.Ba0 25,720 5,005 35,274 iefinli
Tolal Revenues 20F A4 311,031 1285540 74,001 11.¥8%,113
Expondjuires:
Cumrani
Inskrncilon
Speclal 56,76 0 0 o B6,705
Varalional £ BORZTE 0 174,030 207.0%0 &5 a7T.a2
Achit Eclucotlon 2,902 4] 13,4849 127,424 143.30
Suppar] Sepyioes
Fupils 1,183,626 I B3 A5e 168, 7l 1,416,832
Imstructlonal Staf: 308,203 o u] 144,184 AG0, 059
Broard af Ednsatinn RA15 a o 1,602 104917
Adrhintsiration T47 020 N 258 TG 1377 1.017 180
Fizcal 416,751 | N 4] A6, 751
Auginzss 55,178 ] n f BGATE
Ororalian and Maintenance of Plam GA5, 353 a n R4, 780 F45.134
Pupll Transporiation 35,534 a a [a.070 &7.704
Ceniral T3 EAT ul AORA, 360 as5,007 1398 R0
Cperation of Mon-lrelzucliconal 3eryinra 19,270 | ZRS,257 | \ARd4 i} 28891
Extracurriousar Artivities 28,233 o [elid=] D 28,092
Sapltal Cullay 61,208 o Q 244,363 506G, 171
Dabt Barvice:
Principal Resirement 162000 1} C 0 162 G
Inarost and Fiscal Chargas 1262 a0 o o 13,621
Tolal Expendiures S < i S LY S . o R 1,089 404 12,206,000
Excoss (dedfciensyd of Revannes Qyvor
tUncier) Expendtures A4, 2658 {02, 2R (A4, 4271 [@G5.383) [437,77F
Culier Flnanelng Sourees (1ees):
Praoceeds [rem SAlE N Gaphial Agnsta 400 o Ju] n A00
Tranafers - b 0 43,885 BY.ARS 202613 323 An]
Tranafers - £uil (320,400, o L {4.038) (220,500}
Total Other Flnancing Sources (Lsas) _ [325C04) BAEAL &7 3AK 108 675 [7.221),
Mol Shangs in Fund Balances {a80, T 1,062 1.268 MaRs18) (442 094y
Fund Balenres (Roflal) - beginning - Reseled 4 260562 303 A05) 19235 Ai73.535
Fund Relarcas (Dafici] - ending 3 00 7AR (BGEZ,048) $oedin 8E47.197
Armnriints raparled In grvernmanial eclivibes In the staterem o aclivities are dlifeten beralsa,
Het Chango in Fund Ralancas - ktal gesvernmeatal finds
Gavemmental funds repe-l capilal autrys as oxpend hares, IFotezer, in thie
AtAt=ment of aciivilies fhe cozt of hase Assots is allacatand aver [eir esfin piod
useful lves and regerted 85 doprecislion exporsa. Thia is the amouat hy whizh
caphal ouflays excesced denreriation In e eurment panoe, 42 070
Reyrnues In Iho statrment of activities 1ha1 ca nat aravide curranl fnancial roso.ress
Are Net ropored aa revenucs In ihe fngds, 12,645
Intermal aenviza fund I8 weed by imanegemean| k) clargo 1 cosl of
benafit insurance 10 amplcyees a.624
Repayment of leag-tarm abilnatiens is reporied 8 an axpancdinre In
fcyatmmantal funeg, Lhe ropaymert regdUeas long-ierm labibes
1N 110 szkament of nol aszeds. 213 707
Change In net assats of govemmental aotivitlos (31 55,205)

See RORCMPENYING rates to tho basle finaralal statos ants 18



Warron Coumdy Vacatfonal Schoo! DistHel

For the Fizeal Yoar Ended Jupe 20, 2004

Reovonoos:

Property and Other Lacal Taxas
Intergovernmentsl

Tultlon and Fees

hlarest

Rent

Siftz and Donatlons
Wiscallaneous

Total Revenues

Expendituras;
Currant:

[nstrucon:
Spanial
Yacational
Support Services:
Fupils
Instriectionel Staft
Board of Educatian
Adminlatration
Fiscal
Rusmness
Operatlen and Maintenance of Blant
Puplt TranspoHation
Cenlral
Crperation of Mon-
Inatructional Services
Extracurricilar Activities
Capltel Cutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenuss Ouer
yUneler) Expanditures

Dtfter Finoneing Sources (Uses):
Qther Financlng Sources

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Fefund of Prior Year Expenditures
Aolvances In

Advancas Qul

Tranzfers In

Transters Oul

Total Ciher Financing Sourcos {Lses)
Met Change in Fund Dalance

Fund Balances sl Beginning of Year
Prior ¥Wear Encumbrancos Aopropriatod

Fund Balances at End of Year

Warren County, Ohic
Statement of Revenues, Expendfiures snd Changes

fn Fund Balance - Budgel (Non-GAAP Bagls) and Actual -

Gonoraf Fund

Seneral Fund

Varignce with

Final Burget
Budgeted Amntints Pozitive
Criginal Final Actual (MNepativa)
&5,655 037 6 059,851 6,055,831 0
3,06%, 116 4107 494 4,107 484 0
20T 145 214 484 214 454 0
42,011 A4,531 45 T3 2362
4153 4,279 4,279 8]
GRE a47 E47 a
740 .12 7712 n
10,082,708 10438068 _ 10441210 2 262
68,554 68,169 &8,1680 ]
4,250,530 4,210,361 5,210,381 Q
T.A08 622 1,188,578 1,190 378 ¢
315,82R 34102 314,402 o
15,631 16,511 15,5611 a
877,024 BY0,HE R ERCHT:) ]
4585 216 454,711 484 711 4]
67,675 87,534 67.234 0
THT BET TETR1G 761,815 n
24,2448 a7, 855 AT.AnG 0
582 264 GYT.am 877,811 4]
18,871 18,711 19,7149 {1
28,553 28,245 20,345 i
366,715 363 8no 353,908 i
10,066,573 &,970.667 8,970,657 o
26,135 AS9 301 461,555 & 352
16,183 16,755 16,755 a
384G 400 400} 4]
2,284 ik ] 2534 1]
185,758 207585 202 635 o
(253 088) [251,152) {851,153) 0
8,800 10,250 10,280 0
{338 025} (336433 (235432 &
(367.622) (356,180} (365,160} 0
(341,487 104,141 106,383 2362
2410, 7% 2,470,780 Z2.410,780 0
214,718 213,718 213,718 '
2,203,020 2,728 648 _ 52,730,900 52252

Se0 accompanying netes ta tha basie financial stateranis



Warren County Vocational Schoaol District
Warren County, Dhio
Statement of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAF Basis) and Actual -
Food Service Fund
For the Fiseal Year Ended June 34, 2004

Food Service

Wariance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Fositive
Oringinal Tinal Actual (Megativa)
Hevanues;
Intergovernmental F32 653 530,325 F30.325 F0
Custemer Services 167,085 185,180 155,430 250
Miscellansous 30,053 27810 27,8910 1]
Total Revenues 228 BO1 213,415 213 688 250
Expendittires:
Current:
Operation of Nan-
instriectional Services 277 800 267,151 267 181 1]
Total Expentditures 277,500 267 151 267 151 0
Excess of Revenues Cver
{Uncer Expendlturas (47.958) {93,736 {03,486} 250
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers |n 57,6499 53,585 53,585 ]
Total Cther Financing Sources L7605 53 585 53 BAS [}
Mat Change in Fund Balance 8700 {151} 8o 250
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 250 250 250 a
Prior Yerr Encumbrances Appropriated 725 725 7D O
Fund Balances at End of Year $10 878 824 $1.074 5250

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements
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Warren County Vocational School District
Warren County, Ohio
Statemant of Revenues, Expanditures and Chahiges
in Fund Balance - Budoet (Non-GAAP Basis) and Acfual -
Aduit Education Fund
Faor the Fiscal Year Endad June 30, 2004

Adult Education
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Aetial {Negativa)
Revanues:
Intergovarnmental $365,531 $272.320 $272 326 %0
Tuition and Fees 1,326 692 084 966 UR4, G606 ]
Miscellaneous 3,143 2, 335 2,335 ]
Total Revenues 1.685, 3606 1,269 627 1,269 627 0
Expenditiiras:
Current;
instruction;
Wocatianal ald. 210 264 337 204 337 ]
AdultfContinuing 16,015 13,526 13,526 0
Suppaort Servicas,

Pupilz 74,852 63,035 83,035 a

Administration 318,440 269 705 269,704 ]

Central a5 913 840,933 840,833 i)

Operation of Nan-

[nstructional Services 1.6805 1,355 1.2858 0
Capital Qutlay 730 B5G G658 G
Total Expanditures 1,705,580 1,443,580 1,443 550 o
Excess of Revenues
(Under) Expenditures {14,223} (183,823 {183,022) 0
Cthar Financing Sources ({Uses}):

Other Financing Sources 18,887 14,040 14,040 a
Advances In 215317 165 4977 159 977 0
Advances Cut {189.471) {1659 BB&) {159,988) 0
Transfars In 189,118 147 G414 147,941 1]
Transfers Out (95,048} {B0,257) (RO EETY 0
Total Other Financing Sourses (Lsas) 148,813 81,715 81,715 b
Met Charnge in Fund Balance 134,590 {102,208} §102 208) 4]
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 237 585 237 585 237 585 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated G2 541 &2 541 B2, 541 a
Fund Balances at End of Year Sﬁ}?.f_h?j_@_ 197,818 3147 918 - 5O

See accompanying nates to the basic financial statements
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Warren County Vocattonal School District
Warren County, Ohio
Statemeant of Net Assets
Propriatary Funds
June 30, 2004

Customer Goyvarnmeantal
Service Interal Service
Fund Fund
Assets
Currenf Assols
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalants H85,251 £91
Moncurrant Assels
Capital Assets {net of accumulated
depraciation) 3467 1]
Total Assets _ _$9£'-.?1 & 891
Liahilities
Current Liabilifies
Payablas:
Accounts F645 H0
Due to Local Governments 208 a
Interfund 247 0
Total Current Liakilities 1,101 0
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of ralated debt 3.4G67 O
Unrestricted @4, 150 81
Total Met Assets $97 617 £51

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Warren County Vocational School District
Warren County, Ohjo
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Yoar Ended June 30, 2004

Cperating Revenues:
Charges for Services

Cither
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses;
Salaries

Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Bepreciation

Totz| Operating Expenses
Operating Income {Loss)

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Change in Met Assels

Met Assets -

Beginning of Year (Deficit)

Met Assets -~ End of Year

Customer Sovernmental
Service [nternal Service
Fund Fund
P17 812 $0
387 )
118,209 O
1457 G
217 o
1,747 LBA
63,355 2128
B850 a
94 427 2711
23,782 {2,711)
0 6,337
(716} 0
23.068 3,626
74,651 (3,525)
$97 617 501

See accompanying notes to the basic financial stataments
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Warren County Vocational School District

Warren County, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows
Froprietary Funds

Far the Year Ended June 38, 2004

Increase {Decresse) in Cash and Cash Eqilivalonits:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employses for Sarvices

Cash Payments for Claims

Cash Receivod from Other Opearating Revenues

Nai Cash Provided by (Used fory Operating Activilies

Cash Flows Ffrom Noncapital Financing Activitios:

Shart Term Loaan {Repayment)
Transfers In [Quth

Met Cash Provided by {Used far] Moncapital Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalenta at Beginning of Yaar

Cash and Cash Equivalents af End of Year

Reconciffation of Operating Incgme (Loss) fo Net
Cash Used for Operating Activitias:
Operating Income {Loss)

Adiusiments to Reconcile Operating Income {Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by {Usad for) Operating Activities:

DNepreciatian

Changes in Assefs and Liabifities:
Decraase in Accounts Receivable
Decrease In Intergovernmental Receivables
Decrease In Accounts Payahle

Incressa in Dueg to Local Governments
Decrease in Claims Payable

Total Adiusfments

Met Cash Provided Dy (Used fort Operating Activities

Customear Governmental
Service Internal Service
Fund Fund
S127.201 50
(62,742} 0
(1873} {58A)
W] {5,661}
gy {
33,183 {6 2468)
51 0
(F16) 8,337
(635) 6,337
37 h4g 81
&2, 703 0
$95,251A :BQL
23,782 {2.711)
BE0 0
5E17 0
3,771 )
{242} 0
2005 ]
0 (3,538}
9,401 {3 535)
$33 183 {56,24@

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Warren Cainty Vocational School District
Warren County, Ohic
Statement of Fiduciary Assels and Liabifities -

Fidiclary Funds
June 30, 2004
Agency

Assets

Eruity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $68,874
Liabilities

Accounis Payable 2,500
Due to Studants BB, 374
Total Liahilities $G8 874

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

Warren County Vocational School District (the “School District”) is a distinct political subdivision
of the State of Ohio operated under the direction of a seven member Board of Education. The
Board of Education is not directly elected. The Board of Education is comprised of members of
other elected boards who, by charter, also serve as board members of the Warren County Vocational
School District. None of the school districts that appoint Board members are financially accountable
for the School District nor do any appoint a voting majority of the Board.

The School District employs 87 certified and 29 classified staff members who serve approximately
1,061 secondary students and 7,162 adult students. A vocational school exposes high school and
adult students to academic preparation and job training which leads to employment and/or further
education upon graduation from high school.

Reporting Entity

A reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations
that are included to insure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government
of the School District consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally
separate from the School District. For the School District, this includes general operations, food
service, adult education, preschool and student related activities of the School District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the School District is financially
accountable. The School District is financially accountable for an organization if the School District
appoints a voting majority of the organizations’ governing board and (1) the School District is able
to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2)
the School District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organizations’ resources; the
School District is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits
of, or provide financial support to, the organizations; or the School District is obligated for the debt
of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on
the School District in that the School District approves the budget, the issuance of debt, or the
levying of taxes. The School District has no component units.

The School District is associated with three organizations, two jointly governed organizations and
one insurance purchasing pool. These organizations are the Southwest Ohio Computer Association,
the Jewell Education Foundation, and the Southwestern Ohio Educational Purchasing Council
Workers’ Compensation Group Rating Plan. These organizations are discussed in Notes 16 and 17.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the School
District’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.

B. Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, expenditures related to compensated absences are
recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, grants and entitlements, tuition, fees and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered measurable and available only when
cash is received by the District.

Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The District employs the use of three
categories of funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
Governmental funds reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the
purpose for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which
they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as
fund balance.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The food service fund accounts for the financial transaction related to food service operation.
It accounts for all food service charges for services, state and federal grants specific to the
fund service activity, as well as related food service expenditures.

The adult education fund accounts for transactions made in connection with adult education

classes. Receipts include, but are not limited to, tuition from residents and students and
reimbursements from the State Department of Education.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The District reports the following major proprietary fund:

The customer service fund accounts for transactions made in connection with goods and
services provide by the School District. As an example, this fund is used to account for
receipts and purchases made in connection, but not limited to, culinary training, landscape
services and aviation.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of the self-insured benefits plan provided
by the District to the employees on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Agency Funds reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The
District maintains two fiduciary funds, agency funds known as the Pell Grant and Student
Activities Funds. The Pell Grant fund accounts for grant proceeds and disbursement to
various students within the District. The Student Activities fund was established to account
for revenues generated by student managed activities. The District’s agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results
of operations.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions (although no such grants or contributions were received for the year ending June 30,
2004). Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the customer service and internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and internal service fund include the cost of
sales, administration and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

30



WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
the restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

C. Budgetary Data

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the
preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared
are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriation resolution, all of
which are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and
the appropriations resolution are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction
that appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified.

All funds, other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The
primary level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Any budgetary modifications at this level
may only be made by resolution of the Board of Education.

Tax Budget:

Prior to January 15, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board of Education a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. Public hearings are publicized and
conducted to obtain taxpayers’ comments. The expressed purpose of this budget document is to
reflect the need for existing (or increased) tax rates.

By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is filed with the Warren County Budget
Commission for rate determination.

Estimated Resources:

Prior to April 1, the Board of Education accepts by formal resolution the tax rates as determined by
the County Budget Commission and receives the Commission’s Certificate of Estimated Resources,
which states the projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the District must revise its budget
so that total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the
amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated Resources. The revised budget then serves as a basis
for the appropriation measure. On or about July 1, the Certificate is amended to include any
unencumbered balances from the preceding year. The Certificate may be further amended during
the year if projected increases or decreases in revenue are identified by the School District Treasurer.
The amounts reported in the budgetary statement reflect the amounts set forth in the final Amended
Certificate issued during fiscal year 2004.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Appropriations:

Upon receipt from the County Auditor of an amended certificate of estimated resources based on
final assessed values and tax rates or a certificate saying no new certificate is necessary, the annual
appropriation resolution is legally enacted by the Board of Education at the fund level of
expenditures, which are legal levels of budgetary control. Prior to the passage of the annual
appropriation measure, the Board may pass a temporary appropriation measure to meet the ordinary
expenses of the School District. Resolution appropriations by fund must be within the estimated
resources as certified by the County Budget Commission and the total of expenditures and
encumbrances may not exceed the appropriation totals at any level of control. Any revisions that
alter the total of any fund appropriation must be approved by the Board of Education. The School
District has chosen to present the budgetary statements in the basic financial statements at the fund
and function level even though the legal level of control is at the fund level.

The Board of Education may pass supplemental fund appropriations so long as the total
appropriations by fund do not exceed the amounts set forth in the most recent certificate of estimated
resources. The final budget figures which appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons
represent the final appropriation amounts.

Encumbrances:

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the non-GAAP budgetary
basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain
legal compliance. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end are reported as
areservation of fund balance for subsequent-year expenditures for governmental funds and reported
in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations:

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts to the respective
fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriation. Encumbered
appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and are not reappropriated.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management, cash received by the School District is pooled. Monies for all funds,
including proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained
through the School District’s records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as “equity in
pooled cash and investments” on the statement of net assets and fund balance sheets.

During the current fiscal year, investments were limited to US governmental agency notes,
nonparticipating investment contracts such as repurchase agreements and nonnnegotiable certificates
of deposit, which are reported at cost.

Following Ohio statutes, the Board of Education has, by resolution, specified the funds to receive
an allocation of interest earnings. Interest revenue credited to the general fund during the current
fiscal year amounted to $40,451, with $11,236 assigned from other funds. The permanent
improvement capital projects fund also received interest of $1,791.

For purpose of the statement of cash flows and for the presentation on the statement of net assets and
fund balance sheets, investments of the cash management pool and investments with original
maturities of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the School District are
considered to be cash equivalents. At year-end, the School District held only deposits.

E. Inventory (Materials and Supplies)

Inventories are valued at lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and are determined by
physical count. Inventories consist of donated food, purchased food and school supplied held for
resale and are expensed when used.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and vehicles, are reported on the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with
an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual amounts were not
available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The School District reviewed possible infrastructure assets (roads, bridges, culverts, etc.) which
could be required to be capitalized. The School District has no infrastructure assets.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially

extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 50
Vehicles and Equipment 5-15

G. Interfund Assets/Liabilities

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from transaction-like activities
between a government’s various funds are classified as “interfund receivables/payables.” These
amounts are eliminated in the statement of net assets and consolidated columns for the governmental
balance sheet.

H. Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to
receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the School
District will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means.
Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability includes the
employees who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and those the School District
has identified as probable of receiving payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated
sick leave and employees’ wage rates at fiscal year end, taking into consideration any limits
specified in the School District’s termination policy.

The School District records a liability for accumulated unused sick leave for all employees after 20
years of current service with the School District. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported
in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations
and retirements.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities are reported as obligations of the
funds regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources. However, contractually
required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability
on the statement of net assets to the extent that they will not be paid with current available
expendable financial resources. Payments made more than sixty days after year-end are considered
not to have used current available financial resources. Capital leases payable are reported as a
liability on the statement of net assets. Long-term obligations financed by proprietary funds are
reported as liabilities in the appropriate proprietary funds.

J. Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures in the purchase funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a
requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Repayments from funds responsible
for particular expenditures to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial
statements.

K. Fund Balance Reserves

The School District records reservations for portions of fund equity which are legally separated for
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable resources and therefore are not
available for appropriation or expenditure in the governmental fund balance sheet. Fund balances
represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds,
while unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is available for
appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves are established for encumbrances, property
taxes, inventory and budget stabilization.

L. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the statement of net assets. Net
assets invested in capital assets are calculated, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets in the general fund represent cash and cash equivalents whose use is limited by
legal requirements. Restricted assets include amounts required by statute to be set aside by the
School District to create a reserve for budget stabilization. See Note 18 for calculation of the year-
end restricted asset balance and the corresponding fund balance reserves.

N. Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2004, but which were
levied to finance fiscal year 2005 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenues. Grants and
entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred
revenues.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the
available period have also been reported as deferred revenue.

O. Exchange/Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenues resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially
equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual
basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue
from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first
permitted, matching requirements, in which the School District must provide local resources to be
used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to
the School District on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from
non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

P. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those

statements.

Q. Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details
of this ($679,068) difference are as follows:

Capital Lease Payable ($116,812)
Long Term Pension Obligation (25,420)
Compensated Absences (536,836)

Net Adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds
to arrive at net assets - governmental activities ($679,068)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fund.” The details of $3,785,660
difference are as follows:

Capital Assets $11,137,018
Accumulated Depreciation (7,351,358)

Net Adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities $3,785,660
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

An element of that reconciliation states that “Repayment of long-term obligations is reported as an
expenditure in government funds, the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets.” The details of this $213,767 are as follows:

Change in Benefit Balances $69,492
Principal reduction on lease obligation 162,601
Change in SERS Obligation (18,326)

Net Adjustment - current financial resources focus to reduce fund
balance - total governmental funds to arrive at net assets -
governmental activities $213,767

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Capital additions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.” The details of this $42,976 are as
follows:

Current capital additions $633,622
Loss on disposal of capital assets (974)
Depreciation Expense (589,672)

Net Adjustment - capital assets to increase fund balance - total
governmental funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities $42,976

NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Budgetary Basis of Accounting:

While the School District is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund
balance retained earnings on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the
budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of
cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - General Fund
and Major Special Revenue Funds are presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget.
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NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

The major differences between the budgel basis and GAAP basts are that:

Al

Revenues are recarded when recelved in cash {hudget basis) as opposed 1o when
susceplible to acerual {GAAT basis).

Fxpendituresiex penses are recorded when paid in cash (hudget basis) as opposed to
when the liability is incurred {GAAT basig).

Encwmbrances are treated as expenditure/expenses for all funds {hudget basis) rather
than as a regervation of fund balance for governmental fund types and as nole
disclosure in the proprictary fund type (GAAT basis).

Advances-Tn and Advances-Out are operating iransactions (budgel basis) as opposed
ke alance sheet ransactions (GAAD basis).

The following 1alles summarize the adjustments necessary o reconcile the GAAP and budgetary
basis statements for major funds with required budgetary supplemental information. Only the
general amd major special revenue Tunds are reporied for comparison.

Net Change in Fund Balance
Major Funds

Food Adult
General Scrvice [Educaticon
Fund fund T'und
GAAT Basis {(5280,797) $1.359 $3,258
Adjustments:
Revenue Accrual 842,757 2,634 2218
Hxpenditure Acerual {33,339 {3,894 {42,905)
Advances {48,407} 0 0
‘I'ramsfers (716) f 0
Encumbrances {(373,043) {3 {70.089)
Budgel Basis £106,393 £99  {H162,208)
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTABILITY
At June 30, 2004 the following fund had deficit fund balances:
Major Fund
Food Service Fund $682,046

Nonmajor Funds:

Career Education Fund 33
Early Entry Fund 745
Vocational Education Fund 371

The deficits resulted from adjustments for accrued liabilities. The general fund is liable for any
deficit provides operating transfers when cash is required, not when accruals occur. The School
District is monitoring the sales in the food service fund to see if an increase in charges is necessary.

NOTE 5 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds. Each fund type’s portion of
this pool is displayed on the statement of net assets and fund balance sheets as “equity in pooled
cash and cash equivalents.” State Statute requires the classification of monies held by the District
into three categories:

Active Monies - Those monies that are required to be kept in a “cash” or “near cash” status
for immediate use by the District. Such monies must by law be maintained either as cash
in the District treasury, in depository accounts payable or withdrawable on demand,
including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit
accounts.

Inactive Monies - Those monies not required for use within the current two-year period of
designated depositories. Ohio law permits inactive monies to be deposited or invested as
certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of
depositories.

Interim Monies - Those monies which are not needed for immediate use but which will be
needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories.
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NOTE 5 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENT (continued)

Protection of the School District’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as security for
repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the treasurer by the financial institution or by
a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure the repayment of all public
money deposited with the institution.

State legislation permits interim monies to be deposited or invested in the following securities:

1.

United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued
by the United States treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and
interest by the United States;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal
national mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank,
federal home loan mortgage corporation, government national mortgage association,
and student loan marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct
issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market
value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal
value of the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and
that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described
in division (1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securities described in this division are
made only through eligible institutions;

The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio);

Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two
highest rating classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies;
and,

Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed

one hundred and eighty days from the date of purchase in an amount not to exceed
twenty-five percent of the interim moneys available for investment at any one time.
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NOTE 5 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENT (continued)

Investments in siripped prineipal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreemenis and
derivatives sre prohibited. The issuance of taxable noles Tor the purpose of arbitrage, the use of
leverage and shost selling are also prohibited. An investment must mature within five vears fiom
the date of purchase unless malched W specilic obligalion or debl of the District, and must be
purchased with the expectation that it wiil be held to matwrity.

[vesuments may only e made through specified dealers and mstitutions, Payment fot investmenis
may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investinents to the treasurer or,
it the securitics are not represented by a cerlificale, upon receipd of confirmation of trans fer from the
cnslodian.

The following information classifics deposils and investmenls by categories of risk ag defined in
GASDE Statement No. 3, “deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments {including Repurchase
Agreements) and Raverse Reporehase Agreements.”

Deposita: At vear-end the carrying amount of the District’ s deposits was 82,864,025 and the
banlk balance of deposits was $3.377.050. Of the hank balance, $400.000 was covered by
tedersl deposilory insurance, $1,280.591 was covered by pledoed collateral and the
remaining $1,696,459 was covered by a pool of collateral securities, Although the sceuritics
were held by the pledging financial instilotions’ trust department io the Digtrict’s name and
all statutory requircments Tor the investment of the momey had been followed,
noncomplianes with the federal requirements would potentially sulject the money held in
the Distriet’s name to a suecessful claim by the FTITC,

(hio Revised Code Chapier 133, Uniform Depository Acl, authorizes pledging of pooled sceurilics
in Tieu of pledging specific securities. Specifically, a designated public depository may pledge a
single pool of eligible securitics to seeure repayment of all public moinies deposited in the financial
ngtitution, provided that al all times the total value of the securities so pledzed is at least equal to
1115% af the total amount of all publie deposits secured by the pool, including the portion of such
deposits covered by any federal deposil insurance,

Calegory 3 Fair Yalue
Foderal Home Loan Banlk 24,420 B244 429
Federal National Morlgage Association 1,150,316 1,150,316
Toal $1.394,745 51,394,745

Cash and eash equivalents and investiments are pooled Tor balance sheet elassificatiog on the basic
financial stalemenis because the pool consists of deposits, short-tern fnvesiments or long-term
investments that can be converted io liquid asseiz. A reconeilialion between the classtfications of
cash and investments on the fund financial statements and classification per GASE Statement No.
315 as Tollows:
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NOTE 5 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENT (continued)

Cash and Cash
Equivalents/
Deposits Investments

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash

Equivalents - Basic Financial Statements $4,258,770 $0
Investments:

Federal Home Loan Bank (244,429) 244,429
Federal National Mortgage Association (1,150,316) 1,150,316
GASB Statement No. 3 $2.864,025 $1,394,745

NOTE 6- PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, public utility and tangible personal (business)
property. The assessed value, by property classification, upon which taxes collected in 2004 were

based, are as follows:

2003 First- 2004 Second-
Half Collections Half Collection
Amount Percent Amount Percent

Agricultural/Residential

and Other Real Estate $2,347,040,570 86.61% $2,668,756,220 88.19%
Public Utility Personal 108,808,920 4.02 110,602,170 3.65
Tangible Personal Property 254,125,570 9.37 246,916,350 8.16
Total Assessed Value $2,709,975,060 100.00% $3,026,274,740 100.00%
Tax rate per $1,000 of

assessed valuation $4.50 $4.50

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis. First half tax collections are
received by the School District in the second half of the fiscal year. Second half distributions occur
in a new fiscal year. Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility and
tangible personal (used in business) property located in the District. Real property taxes are levied
after April 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public utility
property taxes attached as a lien on December 31 of the prior year, were levied April 1, and are
collected with real property taxes. Assessed values formal property taxes are established by State
law at 35 percent of appraised market value. All property is required to be revalued every six years.
Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at 88 percent of true value
(with certain exceptions) and on real property at 35 percent of true value. Tangible personal
property taxes are levied after April 1 on the value listed as of December 31 of the current year.

Tangible personal property assessments are 25 percent of true value.
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NOTE 6- PROPERTY TAXES (continued)

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment was due by
February 27. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (at least one-half of amount billed) was due
February 27, with the remainder due on July 24.

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected with periodic settlements of Real and
Pubic Utility property taxes in February and August and Tangible Personal Property taxes in June
and October to all taxing districts.

The District received property taxes from the County Auditor. The County Auditor periodically
advances to the District its portion of the taxes collected. Second-half real property tax payments
collected by the County by June 30, 2004 are available to finance current fiscal year operations. The
amount available to be advanced can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2004, consisted of property taxes, accounts (tuition and student fees),
interfund, intergovernmental (grants and rentals), charges for services, and interest. All receivables
are considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment of taxes, the
stable condition of State programs, and the current year guarantee of federal funds. A summary of
the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Fund Amount
Major Funds:
General Fund $1,650
Food Service 2,711
Total Major Funds 4,361

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Special Revenue Funds:

Vocational Education Enhancement 1,188
Adult Basic Education Grant 21,350
Vocational Education Grant 6,033
Miscellaneous Federal Grants 35,502
Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds 64,073
Total $68,434
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NOTE 8 - CAPLITAL ASSETS

Capilal asset activity Tor the fiscal yvear ended Jone 30, 2004, was ns follows:

Restated Baolance

Balane:

OF0103 Meranses Jecrenses &3040
Governmenial Activitics
Capital Assers, nol depreciated
Tand Sd3a,000 a0 30 F456,000
Capital Asscis. hetng deprecialed
Buildings and [mprovemenls H.573.928 362253 B! $,536G,181
Furnilure amd Liguipment 3,126,330 2192090 {13,303 3332333
Vehicles 367,194 2070 (6,76 412,504
Todal at TTistorical Cost [(h,323 461 (33,602 {1063 11,137,018
Lesg Accumulated Depreciation (6,780,777 {3R9,670) 19,0491 {7.331,338)
Governmenlal Aclivities
Capiial Assefs, Wol 53,712,684 $13,950 (£ 53,785,660
Business-Type Aclivilles
Capilal Assers, heing depreciated
Furniture and Equipmen L REY a0 S0 $4,8901
Less Aceumntaled Depreedadan {734} [G3m { (1,43
Busineas-Type Activilies
Capilal Asscls, Net 54,117 {Saa0) 50 $3,467

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
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Inatruction:

Special $585
Yacational 260,718
Adult Educatiom 3439
Suppott Services:

Pupils 13,112
Adminigiration 46,723
Tiseal 3,179
Business 12,762
COperation and Maintenance of Plant 24118
Pupil Tramsporlation 33.583
Centeal 187,961
Mon-opcrational Instruction 3,492
Total Depreciation Mxpense FS589.672
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the
fiscal year 2004, the School District contracted with the Insurance Associates for general liability
insurance with a $1,000,000 single occurrence limit and a $5,000,000 aggregate. Vehicles are
covered under a business policy with Nationwide which carries a $250 deductible and a $1,000,000
limit on any accident.

Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year.

For fiscal year 2004, the School District participated in the Southwestern Ohio Educational
Purchasing Council Workers” Compensation Group Rating Plan (GRP), and insurance purchasing
pool. The intent of the GRP is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the School District
by virtue of its grouping and representation with other participants in the GRP. The workers’
compensation experience of the participating school districts is calculated as one experience and a
common premium rate is applied to all school districts in the GRP. Each participant pays its
workers’ compensation premium to the State based on the rate for the GRP rather than its individual
rate. Total savings are then calculated and each participant’s individual performance is compared
to the overall savings percentage of the GRP. A participant will then either receive money from or
be required to contribute to the “Equity Pooling Fund.” This “equity pooling” arrangement insures
that each participant shares equally in the overall performance of the GRP. Participation in the GRP
is limited to school districts that can meet the GRP’s selection criteria. The firm of
CompManagement provides administrative, cost control and actuarial services to the GRP.

The School District provided an option for medical/surgical benefits (PPO)administered by Anthem
for health care coverage. The School District paid into the self-insurance internal service fund
$548.76 through October 1 and $619.00 after October 1 for family coverage or $219.38 through
October 1 and $247.46 after October 1 for individual coverage per month, both of which represents
eighty-five percent of the premium required. The District also provides dental, vision and life
coverage to the employees at a cost of $82.42 through October 1 and $82.89 after October 1 for
family coverage and $36.55 through October 1 and $36.32 after October 1 for individual coverage.

The District completed the internal service fund in 2004 and therefore there is no claims liability

reported in the internal service fund and governmental activities column on the statement of net
assets at June 30, 2004.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Changes in claims activity for the past two fiscal years are as follows:

Balance at Current Year Claims Balance at
Beginning of Year Claims Payments End of Year

2003 $61,171 $446,488  §504,126 $3,533
2004 3,533 2,128 5,661 0

NOTE 10 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A. School Emplovees Retirement System

The District contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS), a cost sharing
multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the School Employees
Retirement Board. SERS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care
benefits based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by
Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for SERS. That report may
be obtained by writing to the School Employees Retirement System, 45 North Fourth Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3634.

Plan members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary and the District is
required to contribute 14%. A portion of the School District’s contribution is used to fund pension
obligations. The contribution rates are not determined actuarially, but are established by SERS’s
Retirement Board within the rates allowed by State statute. The adequacy of the contribution rates
is determined annually. The District’s contributions to SERS for the years ending June 30, 2004,
2003, and 2002, were, $106,174, $103,309, and $68,453, respectively; 93 percent has been
contributed for fiscal year 2004 and 100 percent for fiscal years 2003 and 2002. $7,909 representing
the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 2004. The current portion of the liability is recorded as a
liability within the respective funds and the entire liability on the government-wide statements.

B. State Teachers Retirement System

The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing
multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers
Retirement Board. STRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care
benefits based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by
Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for STRS. That report may
be obtained by writing to the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215-3771.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 10 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued)

New members have a choice of three retirement plans, a Defined Benefit (DB) Plan, a Defined
Contribution (DC) Plan and a Combined Plan. The DB plan offers an annual retirement allowance
based on final average salary times a percentage that varies based on years of service, or an
allowance based on member contributions and earned interest matched by STRS Ohio funds times
an actuarially determined annuity factor. The DC Plan allows members to place all their member
contributions and employer contributions equal to 10.5% of earned compensation into an investment
account. Investment decisions are made by the member. A member is eligible to receive a
retirement benefit at age 50 and termination of employment. The Combined Plan offers features of
both the DC Plan and the DB Plan. In the Combined Plan, member contributions are invested by the
member, and employer contributions are used to fund the defined benefit payment at a reduced level
from the regular DB Plan. DC and Combined Plan members will transfer to the Defined Benefit
Plan during their fifth year of membership unless they permanently select the DC or Combined Plan.

Existing members with less than five years of service credit as of June 30, 2001, were given the
option of making a one time irrevocable decision to transfer their account balances from the existing
DB Plan into the DC Plan or the Combined Plan. This option expired on December 31, 2001.
Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code.

A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more years credited service who becomes disabled
may qualify for a disability benefit. Eligible spouses and dependents of these active members who
die before retirement may qualify for survivor benefits. Members in the DC Plan who become
disabled are entitled only to their account balance. If a member dies before retirement benefits begin,
the member’s designated beneficiary is entitled to receive the member’s account balance. Plan
members are required to contribute 10% of their annual covered salary and the District is required
to contribute 14%; 1% was the portion to fund pension obligations. Contribution rates are
established by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory
maximum rates of 10% for members and 14% for employers. The District’s contributions to STRS
for the years ending June 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002, were $706,418, $772,349, and $532,702,
respectively; 98 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 2004 and 100 percent for fiscal years
2003 and 2002. $30,544 represents the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 2004 and is recorded as
a liability within the respective funds. The District had the following contributions under the new
plan: defined contribution had $10,177 member and $10,686 District contributions and the members
contributed $17,014 to the combined plan for the current fiscal year.

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The School District provides comprehensive health care benefits to retired teachers and their
dependents through the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), and to retired non-certified
employees and their dependents through the School Employee Retirement System (SERS). Benefits
include hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of monthly medicare
premiums. Benefit provisions and the obligation to contribute are established by the Systems based
on authority granted by State statute. Both systems are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 11 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of the health
care costs will be absorbed by STRS. Most benefit recipients pay a portion of the health care cost
in the form of a monthly premium. By Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall
be included in the employer contribution rate, currently 14% of covered payroll. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2004, the STRS Board allocated employer contributions equal to 1 percent of
covered payroll to the Health Care Reserve Fund. For the School District, this amount equaled
$52,613 during the 2004 fiscal year.

STRS pays health care benefits from the Health Care Reserve Fund. At June 30, 2003, (the latest
information available) the balance in the Fund was $47.6 billion. At June 30, 2003, net heath care
costs paid by STRS were $34.2 billion and STRS had 105,000 eligible benefit recipients.

For SERS, coverage is made available to service retirees with ten or more fiscal years of qualifying
service credit, and to disability and survivor benefit recipients. Members retiring on or after August
1, 1989, with less than twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their premium for
health care. The portion is based on years of service up to a maximum of 75 percent of the premium.

After the allocation for basic benefits, the remainder of the employer’s 14 percent contribution is
allocated to providing health care benefits. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, employer
contributions to fund health care benefits were 4.91 percent of covered payroll. In addition, SERS
levies a surcharge to fund health care benefits equal to 14 percent of the difference between a
minimum pay and the member’s pay, pro-rated for partial service credit. For fiscal year 2004, the
minimum pay was established at $12,400. For the School District, the amount contributed to fund
health care benefits, including the surcharge, during the 2004 fiscal year equaled $82,880.

The surcharge, added to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate,
provides for maintenance of the asset target level for the health care fund. The target level for the
health care reserve is 150 percent of the annual health care expenses. Expenses for health care for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 were $204,930,737 and the target level was $307.4 million. At
June 30, 2003 SERS had net assets available for payment of health care benefits of $303.6 million.
SERS has 50,000 participants currently receiving health care benefits.

NOTE 12 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The criteria for determining vested vacation and sick leave components are derived from negotiated
agreements and State laws. Eligible classified employees may earn up to ten to twenty days of
vacation per year, depending upon length of service. Accumulated, unused vacation time is paid to
classified employees upon termination of employment. Teachers do not earn vacation time.

Teachers, administrators and classified employees earn sick leave at the rate of one and one-fourth
days per month. Sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 240 days. Upon retirement,
payment shall be made for accrued but unused sick days on the basis of 25 percent of member’s
actual accumulated sick leave days to a maximum of 56 days.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 13 - CAPITALIZED LEASES — LESSEE DISCLOSURE

During fiscal year 2000, the School District entered into a capitalized lease for the acquisition of
technology equipment. The terms of the agreement provides an option to purchase the equipment.
The lease meets the criteria of a capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” which defines a capital lease generally as one which
transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. Capital lease payments have been reclassified
and are reflected as debt service expenditures in the governmental funds. These expenditures are
reflected as program/function expenditures on a budgetary basis. Principal payments in fiscal year
2004 totaled $162,601 and interest payments of $13,621.

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments required under the capital leases
and the present value of the minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2004:

Governmental

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Activities
2005 $122,500
Less: Amount Representing Interest (5,688)

Present Value of Net

Minimum Lease Payments $116,812
NOTE 14 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The changes in the School District’s long-term obligations (non-current liabilities) during the year
consist of the following:

Obligation Amounts
Obligation Outstanding Due in
June 30, 2003 Additions Deletions June 30, 2004 One Year
Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $606,327 $433,566 $394,510 $645,383 $236,872
Claims Payable 3,533 0 3,533 0 0
Intergovernmental Payable 7,094 25,420 7,094 25,420 25,420
Capital Leases Payable 279,413 0 162,601 116,812 116,812
Total Governmental $896,367 $458,986 $567,738 $787,615 $379,104

The School District's overall legal debt margin was $272,364,727 with an energy conservation debt
margin of $27,236,473 and an unvoted debt margin of $3,026,275 at June 30, 2004.

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the person is paid. The
intergovernmental payable represents the contractually required pension contributions paid outside
the available period and will be paid from the fund from which the person is paid. Capital leases
and claims payable will be paid from the General fund.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balances at June 30, 2004, consist of the following individual receivables and payables and
operating transfers in the governmental and proprietary fund balance sheets (such amounts are
removed from consolidated columns in the statement of net assets):

Interfund Interfund Transfers Transfers
Receivable Payable In Out
General Fund $784,989 $0 $0 $325,466
Food Service 0 681,491 53,585 0
Adult Education 0 19,991 67,685 0
Nonmajor Funds
Special Revenue 96,418 2,613 4,038
Capital Projects 13,158 0 200,000 0
Internal Service 0 0 6,337 0
Enterprise 0 247 0 716
Total All Funds $798,147 $798,147 $330,220 $330,220

NOTE 16 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The School District is a participant in the Southwest Ohio Computer Association (SWOCA), which
is a computer consortium. SWOCA is an association of public schools and educational service
centers within the boundaries of Butler, Preble, and Warren Counties. The organization was formed
for the purpose of applying modern technology with the aid of computers and other electronic
equipment to administrative and instructional functions among member school districts. The
governing board of SWOCA consists of the superintendent (or the superintendent’s designee) from
each member district. The School District paid $62,421 or services provided during the fiscal year.
Financial information can be obtained from the fiscal agent, Butler County JVS, 3603 Hamilton-
Middletown Road, Hamilton, Ohio 45011.

The School District is a participant in the Jewell Education Foundation, which is a jointly governed
educational foundation established to benefit the school districts in Warren County. The Foundation
was created to promote and assist in funding through soliciting grants and charitable contributions
for distributions to member educational institutions of participating school districts. The governing
board is made up of the Warren County Vocational School District superintendent, one member of
the 1999 Warren County Vocational School District Board of Education, not on the current board,
and one member submitted by each participating school district. The district made no financial
contribution to the Foundation. Financial information can be obtained from the Director of Planned
Giving, Rick Wood, at P. O. Box 854, Lebanon, Ohio 45036.
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 17 - INSURANCE PURCHASING POOL

The School District participates in the Southwestern Ohio Educational Purchasing Council Workers’
Compensation Group Rating Plan (GRP). The GRP’s business and affairs are conducted by a
fourteen-member committee consisting of various Educational Purchasing Council representatives
that are elected by the general assembly. Either the superintendent or treasurer from each
participating school district serves on the general assembly. Each year, the participating school
districts pay an enrollment fee to the GRP to cover the costs of administering the program.

NOTE 18 - STATUTORY RESERVES

As stated in H.B. 412 the District is required to maintain through reserves; one for textbooks; one
for capital acquisitions; and one for budget stabilization. A reserve represents resources whose use
is limited because of contractual or statutory restrictions.

Capital Budget
Textbooks Acquisition Stabilization Totals

Set-aside Carryover Balance ($1,181,882) $0 $30,312 ($1,151,570)

as of June 30, 2003
Current Year Set-aside Requirement 101,495 101,495 0 202,990
Offsets 0 (200,000) 0 (200,000)
Qualifying Disbursements (596,812) (253,063) 0 (849,875)
Total (1,677,199) (351,568) 30,312
Set-aside Carryover Balance

as of June 30, 2004 ($1,677,199) $0 $30,312
Total Restricted Assets $30,312

Although the School District had qualifying disbursements during the year that reduced the capital
acquisition and textbook set-aside amounts to below zero, only the amount for the textbooks set-
aside may be used to reduce the set-aside requirement of future years. The capital acquisition
negative amount is therefore not presented as being carried forward to the next fiscal year. The total
reserve balance for the three set-asides at the end of the fiscal year was $30,312.

NOTE 19 - STATE SCHOOL FUNDING DECISION
On December 11, 2002, the Ohio Supreme Court issued its latest opinion regarding the State’s
school funding plan. The decision reaffirmed earlier decisions that Ohio’s current school-funding

decision is unconstitutional.

The Supreme Court relinquished jurisdiction over the case and directed “...the Ohio General
Assembly to enact a school-funding scheme that is thorough and efficient...”

The School District is currently unable to determine what effect, if any, this decision will have its
future State funding and on its financial operations.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

NOTE 20 - CONTINGENCIES
Grants:

The School District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of
grants. The expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with
terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the general
fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims
will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the School District at June
30, 2004.

Litigation:

As of June 30, 2004, the School District did not have any pending litigation.

NOTE 21 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The District restated beginning net capital assets by $13,410 for additions placed into service during

fiscal year 2003 but not recorded. The restated beginning net capital asset balances increased from
$3,729,939 to $3,742,684.
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Auditor of State
Betty Montgomery

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Warren County Vocational School District
Warren County

3529 North State Route 48

Lebanon, Ohio 45036

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the financial statements of the Warren County Vocational School District, Warren County,
Ohio (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated
February 7, 2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. We also noted an immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have
reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated February 7, 2005.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration
of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted a
matter involving the internal control over financial reporting that does not require inclusion in this report,
that we have reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated February 7, 2005.

Corporate Centre of Blue Ash /11117 Kenwood Rd. / Blue Ash, OH 45242
Telephone: (513) 361-8550 (800) 368-7419 Fax: (513) 361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Warren County Vocational School District

Warren County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance and on
Internal Control Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, and Board of
Education, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Tt atgomeny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State

February 7, 2005
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WARREN COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARREN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2004

Not Corrected, Partially Corrected;

Finding Finding Fully Significantly Different Corrective Action
Number Summary Corrected? | Taken; or Finding No Longer Valid;
Explain:
Finding for Recovery — ] o
Technology Director’s Not Repaid. This issue has been
2003-001 usage of District cell No referred to the Ohio Attorney General
phones and County Prosecutor.
Third Party Administrator
2003-002 SAS-70 Yes
2003-003 Lack of internal control Yes

over purchases/contracts
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CLERK’S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in
the Office of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code,
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